FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

CSBG DISCRETIONARY GRANT FY2012

1. One of the attachments is the 2010 certified audit.  Do you want six complete audits for each grant copy? 

Yes, please send a copy of your audit for each application.  This allows the information to be shared with each grant reviewer as part of the review process.
2. Are operations and programming allowable expenses. 

For the grant application you can apply for operations support but make sure that you clearly explain why you need operations support.  The grant can support it but there needs to be good rationale for operating expenses.  Programming expenses are absolutely allowable.  Please read through the RFA and the Application fully before writing the narrative to make sure your organization answers the questions completely and covers all the information.

From the Application:

Applications for CSBG discretionary funds should be project-focused; should have clear objectives, definitive timelines and measurable outcomes; and should be part of a larger effort of leveraging funds and/or filling resource gaps. Please note that applications for general overhead or administrative costs will not be accepted unless there is a strong justification for those costs. All applications should link directly State of Nebraska’s CSBG priorities outlined below and be based on a demonstrated community need. Applications will need to present a clear and direct linkage to one or more of these priorities. All applications will be reviewed to ensure that agencies are presenting efforts related to achieving the CSBG objectives, leveraging, establishing clear partnerships, ensuring project sustainability and identifying measurable outcomes.
3. Are the agencies listed with discretionary funds being funded in this round? 

Previous recipients of CSBG Discretionary grant dollars are eligible to apply but are not guaranteed funding.  They will compete for the $240,000 with every other applicant.

4. Is this a one or two year fund cycle?

The grant is for one year with the possibility of a second year based on grantee performance and submission of an application in August 2012.  It will also depend on what CSBG is funded at in the FY2012 and FY2013 budgets.

From the Application:

CSBG Discretionary funds are not intended to support on-going projects. Therefore, projects that are selected will be funded for no more than two (2) consecutive years. Discretionary funds are competitive.  Funding for the second year will be dependent on applicant performance and submission of a completed application in August 2012. The applicant must demonstrate the ability to sustain the project without CSBG discretionary monies.
5. How many agencies applied during the last cycle for discretionary funds? 
This is the first year that CSBG Discretionary dollars are competitive.

6. What was the amount awarded to each of the agencies listed?
There should be no agencies listed that received CSBG Discretionary dollars.  As of FY2012, 100% of the CSBG Discretionary dollars will be competitive so previous grantees must apply.

 

The nine community action agencies are: Blue Valley Community Action, Central Nebraska Community Services, Community Action Partnership of Lancaster and Saunders Counties, Community Action Partnership of Western Nebraska, Community Action Partnership of Mid Nebraska, Eastern Nebraska Community Action Partnership, Goldenrod Hills Community Action, Northwest Community Action Partnership and Southeast Nebraska Community Action.

7. Do matching funds make a difference?
Matching funds are not required in this grant.  However, note that leveraging funds is an important part of the application:

From the front page of the Application:

Applications for CSBG discretionary funds should be project-focused; should have clear objectives, definitive timelines and measurable outcomes; and should be part of a larger effort of leveraging funds and/or filling resource gaps. Please note that applications for general overhead or administrative costs will not be accepted unless there is a strong justification for those costs. All applications should link directly State of Nebraska’s CSBG priorities outlined below and be based on a demonstrated community need. Applications will need to present a clear and direct linkage to one or more of these priorities. All applications will be reviewed to ensure that agencies are presenting efforts related to achieving the CSBG objectives, leveraging, establishing clear partnerships, ensuring project sustainability and identifying measurable outcomes.

 

From the budget section of the Application:

Sustainability Plan: A description of how the organization will ensure that the project continues after the CSGB discretionary resources are completed, and, if applicable, how funds will be raised and leveraged to continue the project.  If this is a one time project, explain how the project can accomplish the goals in one year and why the applicant decided that this was the best course of action to address the problem(s) identified.

 

Linkages and Collaboration: This section should identify project partners and other collaborators. Include a listing of the agencies in your area with whom you plan to collaborate in the project to serve the low-income population, what role those agencies will play in the project and describe how this project links with their efforts but does not duplicate services. Provide a description as to how the project promotes, leverages and/or partners with community programs in the service area.

8. Are there parts of the grant restricted to the community action programs?
No.  Agencies can get 1 point for being a community action agency and one point for collaborating with community action agencies.  The most points an applicant can receive that is not a community action agency or partnering with agencies is 98 points.
9. When listing the priorities which should be addressed by proposals, the examples seem to imply that direct services in the area of Employment, Education, Better Use of Income, Housing, Nutrition, Emergency Services, or Health are being prioritized. 

 

Would a proposal  addressing Goal 3, Community ownership; Goal 4, Partnerships; or Goal 5, increased capacity; but looked at documenting best practices, building statewide networks, or increasing organizational capacity in one or more of the priority areas, be considered, or is there an explicit emphasis on providing direct services?

The language in the RFA and application says: 

Any non profit with 501(c)3 status including community based, neighborhood based, and faith based non profits are eligible to apply; 
-          Must serve more than one county, preferably a regional area and ideally a statewide presence;
-          Must provide direct client services or provide significant support to direct client service providers.
 
By that second bullet, agencies that work with direct service providers such as associations can apply.

 

The priority areas must be addressed but the examples are just that, examples.  As the RFA explains under Services Description: 

The priorities listed allow applicants to address local needs.  Definitions are not provided however examples are listed of projects that would qualify.  This is not a complete list of activities supported by CSBG funds.  Some projects may address more than one area listed below.  Many of these will require partnership with existing projects. The Project Funding Request and Statement of Needs in the Application should clearly define how the applicant plans to address these focus areas.  
 
The project does not have to provide direct client services but must address one or more of the priority areas.  What is more important than fitting the examples or a focus on direct service is ensuring that the application demonstrates how the project fits with the priorities and goals and providing sufficient evidence that the applicant’s project will meet those priorities and goals. 

 

So yes the examples you provided would be considered.  In the examples provided be sure to address the section concerning general overhead or administrative costs if you think the project will have significant administrative or overhead costs for state wide networks, best practices and organizational capacity.  
Also, please note again that the examples provided are just that and not an exhaustive list of programs or projects that are eligible for this funding.  For example, some areas are focusing on SOAR and that is an allowable project under this funding.

 

From the Application:

Applications for CSBG discretionary funds should be project-focused; should have clear objectives, definitive timelines and measurable outcomes; and should be part of a larger effort of leveraging funds and/or filling resource gaps. Please note that applications for general overhead or administrative costs will not be accepted unless there is a strong justification for those costs. All applications should link directly State of Nebraska’s CSBG priorities outlined below and be based on a demonstrated community need. Applications will need to present a clear and direct linkage to one or more of these priorities. All applications will be reviewed to ensure that agencies are presenting efforts related to achieving the CSBG objectives, leveraging, establishing clear partnerships, ensuring project sustainability and identifying measurable outcomes.
10. Can state programs apply for funding?  

The application is open to any non profit in the State of Nebraska that serves one or more counties in the state.  Preference is given to statewide projects, then regional, then smaller entities.  Unfortunately, State of Nebraska programs are not eligible to apply but they can definitely partner with non profits and the non profit can submit an application in partnership with a state office.

 

11. What is the maximum annual award amt?  

The maximum award amount is $125,000 per year.  There is an option of a second year of funding dependent on submission of an application in August 2012 and grantee performance. Of course since this is federal funding availability is also dependent on what CSBG receives in FY2013.
NEW QUESTIONS

12. The RFA is geared toward Community Action Agencies targeting the 
self-sufficiency of low income individuals.  Is this our only 
avenue/application for requesting much-needed funds? Can any organization apply for grant funds if they meet the criteria or is this just for the Community Action Agencies to apply for? So these grants are for Non Profit organizations only?
While the grant application aligns with community action agency goals based on the six (6) national priorities and the goals of CSBG, any non profit can apply for these funds.

FROM RFA:
Eligible Applicants: 
Any non profit with 501(c)3 status including community based, neighborhood based, and faith based non profits are eligible to apply; 

- Must serve more than one county, preferably a regional area and ideally a statewide presence; 

- Must provide direct client services or provide significant support to direct client service providers. 

Applicant Eligibility 
To be eligible to apply for funding through the Community Services Block Grant Discretionary Grants program, applicants must meet all of the following criteria: 

A. Applicant must be a private, nonprofit organization exempt from taxation under section 501(c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; 

B. Applicant cannot discriminate based on age, religion, sex, color, disability or national origin; 

C. Applicant must operate a certified drug free workplace; 

D. Applicants must agree to participate in Results Oriented Management and Accountability (ROMA) to track outcomes using the National Performance Indicators. These reports will be due twice a year; 

E. Applicants must conduct and submit the organization’s annual, certified, external audit for the year immediately preceding the application to be eligible for CSBG funding. 

FROM APPLICATION:
Please check the goal(s) you will incorporate into your proposed project.  Must select two or more.

· Goal 1: Low-income people become more self-sufficient

· Goal 2: The conditions in which low-income people live are improved

· Goal 3: Low-income people own a stake in their community

· Goal 4: Partnerships among supporters and providers of services to low-income people are achieved

· *Goal 5: Agencies increase their capacity to achieve results*
· Goal 6: Low-income people, especially vulnerable populations, achieve their potential by strengthening family and other supportive systems.

*GOAL 5 IS ONLY AN OPTION FOR COMMUNITY ACTION APPLICANTS*

Please check the priorities your project will focus on.  Must select one or more.

· Employment

· Education

· Better Use of Available Income

· Housing

· Nutrition

· Emergency Services

· Health
These are spelled out in the CSBG Act and guidelines for CSBG funding.  There are several nonprofits who may address one or more of the goals and one or more of the priorities.  It is important for your project to explain how your project fits these and how it will impact the goals and priorities.

13. Does “mail” include Fed Ex as well as USPS?  It says to the state by August 24, does that mean postmarked by the 24th, as it is hard to guarantee the length of time the USPS takes to mail? Can it be hand delivered?
There is no limitation on how the grant is delivered to the Nebraska State Office Building in Lincoln.  It must arrive by 5:00 PM on Wednesday, August 24 at the latest.  Yes, they can be hand delivered however please note that they will need to dropped off at the 3rd floor DHHS Reception area and they leave promptly at 5PM.  Our street address is 301 Centennial Mall South.

FROM RFA:

SUBMIT PROPOSAL TO: Jennifer Dreibelbis, CSBG Program Specialist 

Nebraska Department of Health & Human Services 

Division of Children and Family Services 

P.O. Box 95026 

Lincoln, NE 68509-5026 

402-471-9346 

jennifer.dreibelbis@nebraska.gov 

14. With the discretionary grants, if the grant review team feels the proposal is good but wants to fund a broader range of grantees will they negotiate on the funding and activities? 
The option for grant reviewers to approve high scoring grants that may exceed the $240,000 limit will be available.  It is possible that there will be identical scoring or high scoring applications that exceed the limit.  The grant review team will have the option to reduce awards to fund more applicants based on reasonability and practicality of that option for the high scoring applicants.

15. Can you tell me, are client services considered “Operation Expenses” in regards to the CSBG Discretionary budget?
There is confusing language between the RFA and Application and the Budget form concerning this question.  The Budget Form mimics the budget form submitted by community action agencies for their 90% pass through of CSBG funds.  Using the form allows for continuity across the Aid to Agencies (90%) and the Discretionary (5%).
FROM APPLICATION:

BUDGET INFORMATION- PROJECT BUDGET (3 pages limit) (10 points total for project budget and budget narrative)

The proposal needs to include the outlined budget completed on the forms provided.  Please include a budget narrative showing how budget line items were determined (see instructions).  Budget and audit show diversified budget funding sources.

Use the existing budget form below to complete the Project Budget.  Remember that applications for general overhead or administrative costs will not be accepted unless there is a strong justification for those costs.
Page 2 and Page 3 of the budget form allows applicant to provide more detail on Personnel, Other Operating Costs and Other Travel Costs.  Applicants will also be expected to explain expenses more clearly in the budget narrative.  

Note: if the applicant applies for indirect costs in the grant application, they must provide a copy of their negotiated indirect cost rate from USDHHS or other relevant federal funding agency.  The applicant cannot exceed that negotiated indirect cost rate.  If the applicant does not have a negotiated indirect cost rate than they are not eligible to apply for indirect costs under this grant.

But the Budget Form does not have a Program line item it just has Operations.

The line items listed in the Operations budget must relate to the project.  These are all allowable costs in the project proposed in the grant as long as there is rationale provided in the budget narrative explaining the costs.
The line about applications for general overhead or administrative costs will not be accepted unless there is a strong justification for those costs relates to an application that asks agency support that is not related to the project proposed.  For example, an agency applies for funding but asks for rent to cover the entire agency and not based on a cost allocation for the project specifically;  Or an agency asks for support for staff not related to the project or the support. 

If an applicant is applying to use CSBG Discretionary funds to provide direct client services, then the cost would go under Operations: Other and then list client services on page 3 of the budget form and explain rationale for expense in the budget narrative.

16. Is there a limit on the number of attachments?

No, there is no limit on the number of attachments except as listed in the RFA (See below). Because of the way it was written in the Project Funding Request in the Application information will need to be included in that section and not as an attachment.  

However, as long as the information is discussed in that section, you can refer grant reviewers to an attachment.  For example, Board membership- you must reference your board membership in this section but can provide more specifics in an attached document. Another example, Audit- you must talk about your agency budget and audit process in this section but can reference the attached audit for more information concerning those topics.

Grant reviewers will be looking that the information referenced below is in the project funding request so make sure you address the relevant sections.  It is OK if more detailed information is provided in an attachment.

FROM APPLICATION:
PROJECT FUNDING REQUEST (Limit 10 pages) (40 points)

A comprehensive explanation of project details including objectives, number of clients to be served, expected outcomes and project timeline. Clearly outline the approach, plan and activities that will support the goals and objectives. Indicate the expected impact of this project on its targeted population/community residents through projected outcomes and goals. Provide details on how the project aligns with CSBG goals and priorities and reflects strategies that promote self sufficiency and sustainable development and community building.
Be sure to address the following in your Project Funding Request:
Agency Background: A brief profile of your agency that includes the following components that demonstrate a connection to the project and the ability to support the project:

1. Date of incorporation

2. Overall mission or purpose of the agency

3. Primary services of the agency

4. Demonstrated ability of agency to achieve results (such as staff capacity, past/present achievements, successes, resources)

5. Annual budget and recent audit (clean audit; if findings, explain the agency’s corrective action plan).

6. Board members including names, addresses and phone numbers.  Include terms if applicable.
Eligibility Determination Plan: A description of how those being served by the project are low-income individuals at or below 125% of the federal poverty guidelines.
Sustainability Plan: A description of how the organization will ensure that the project continues after the CSGB discretionary resources are completed, and, if applicable, how funds will be raised and leveraged to continue the project.  If this is a one time project, explain how the project can accomplish the goals in one year and why the applicant decided that this was the best course of action to address the problem(s) identified.

Linkages and Collaboration: This section should identify project partners and other collaborators. Include a listing of the agencies in your area with whom you plan to collaborate in the project to serve the low-income population, what role those agencies will play in the project and describe how this project links with their efforts but does not duplicate services. Provide a description as to how the project promotes, leverages and/or partners with community programs in the service area.


FROM RFA:
APPLICATION COMPLETION CHECKLIST 
To ensure that your application Community Services Block Grant Discretionary program is complete and will be accepted for review, please use and include this checklist in your application: 

The application DOES NOT EXCEED THE PAGE MAXIMUMS INDICATED FOR NARRATIVE SECTIONS within the document. 
The attached CSBG application is presented on the forms provided or in similar format on the applicant’s own application document. All questions are addressed. 

Budget(s) identify all sources and uses of funds as they relate to the project(s) described in this application. 

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS MUST BE INCLUDED: 
Completed FFATA form (downloaded from State of Nebraska DHHS, CSBG webpage) 

Organization’s articles of incorporation and/or proof of 501 (c) (3) status 

List of Board of Director’s, including their addresses and phone numbers and terms if applicable. 

Copy of a certified, external financial audit for FY2010. 

Copy of Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate if asking for Indirect Costs in budget. 

List of personnel supported through this grant. Use page two (P2) of budget form in application 

Letters of support (not to exceed three). 

Drug certification- include your agency level drug free policy. Include citation of where this is found internally, i.e. personnel policies and procedures, bylaws, etc. 

Please submit one (1) original and six (6) copies of the entire application and supporting documentation. 
